
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.   

Please ask for: 
Graham Seal 

 
 
 

6 December 2019 
 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET to be held on Monday 16 December 2019 at 7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 
November 2019 (previously circulated). 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Cabinet and to receive any 
petitions. 
 

4.   ACTIONS STATUS REPORT (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and 
Governance) on the status of actions agreed at the last Cabinet meeting. 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

5.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER 
ITEM 11  
 

6.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-
disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on the Agenda. 
 

7.   ITEM REQUIRING KEY DECISION  
 

 To consider the following item for decision in the current Forward Plan:- 
 

(a)    Hertfordshire Growth Board Memorandum of Understanding (Forward 
Plan Reference FP953) (Pages 7 - 18) 

 Report of the Chief Executive seeking agreement to the Memorandum 
of Understanding for the Board. 
 

8.   PERFORMANCE EXCEPTION REPORT - QUARTER 2 (2019-20) (Pages 19 
- 32) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural 
Services) summarising strategic performance data from the last performance 
clinic for quarter 2 (2019/20). 
 

9.   COUNCIL ACHIEVEMENTS LIST (JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2019) (Pages 33 - 
40) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural 
Services) summarising the council’s key achievements and service 
improvements for Quarter 2 of 2019-20. 
 

10.   HERTFORDSHIRE YEAR OF CULTURE 2020 - UPDATE (Pages 41 - 46) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural 
Services) summarising the local and county level preparations that have been 
completed over recent months leading up to the Hertfordshire Year of Culture 
2020. 
 

11.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS 
OF SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 
 
 
 
 



12.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Cabinet is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be now excluded from the meeting for Items 13, 14 and 15 (if 
any) on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of confidential or 
exempt information as defined in Section 100(A)(3) and Paragraph 3 (private 
financial or business information) and 5 (legal and professional privilege) of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

PART II 
 

13.   ITEMS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE REQUIRING KEY DECISION  
 

 To consider the following items of an exempt nature:- 
 

(a)    Award of Contract for the Supply and Rollout of Food Caddies 
(Forward Plan Reference FP954) (Pages 47 - 50) 

 Exempt report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and 
Cultural Services) providing details of the procurement process for the 
award of this contract. 
 

14.   ITEM OF AN EXEMPT NATURE REQUIRING KEY DECISION NOT IN THE 
FORWARD PLAN  
 

 To consider the following item of an exempt nature for decision not in the 
current Forward Plan:- 
 

(a)    Grant Award of Registered Provider of Housing (Pages 51 - 54) 

 Exempt report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) 
on the award of one for one / right to buy grant to registered provider, 
to support increased delivery of social rented homes. 
 
(Note: The Chairman of the Social Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
has been given notice that it was impracticable to comply with the 
requirement that at least twenty eight days notice must be given of the 
intention to make a key decision not in the Forward Plan in 
accordance with Regulation 10 of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012 because it was urgent and could not reasonably be 
deferred for the reason specified). 
 
The reason for this item is that detailed information and the viability of 
the development has just been made available. 
 



15.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT 
THE DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors T.Kingsbury (Chairman) 

D.Bell (Vice-Chairman) 
S.Boulton 
T.Mitchinson 
 

N.Pace 
B.Sarson 
F.Thomson 
 

 Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Graham 
Seal, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


 

 

Part I 
Main author: Graham Seal 
Executive Member: Cllr Fiona Thomson 
Not Ward Specific 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET – 16 DECEMBER 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

ACTIONS STATUS REPORT 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 In order to ensure that actions identified at meetings are completed, this report 
lists the actions from the last Cabinet meeting, those responsible for completing 
each action and its current status. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Members note the status of the following actions which were identified at 
the last Cabinet meeting on 5 November 2019:- 

Minute Action Responsible 
Status/ 
Date Completed 

60.1 Localised Council Tax 
Support Scheme 2020/21 

Farhad Cantel Recommendation to be reported to 
the Council meeting on 7 January 
2020 

 

60.2 Duty of Care 
Enforcement for Fly-
Tipping 

Kirsten Roberts Recommendation to be reported to 
the Council meeting on 7 January 
2020 

 

60.3 Service Standards for 
Regulatory Work 

Joanna Harding Recommendation to be reported to 
the Council meeting on 7 January 
2020 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Rob Bridge 
Executive Member: Cllr Tony Kingsbury 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET – 16TH DECEMBER 2019 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

HERTFORDSHIRE GROWTH BOARD MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 To invite the Cabinet to approve the attached Hertfordshire Growth Board 
Memorandum of Understanding setting out the objectives, principles, and scope 
of the collaborative work being and to be undertaken through the Hertfordshire 
Growth Board.  

1.2 Since the formation of the Hertfordshire Growth Board in September 2018 
Leaders and Chief Executives of the eleven Hertfordshire Councils and the Local 
Enterprise Partnership have worked together to develop a Place Leadership 
model for Hertfordshire.  In March 2019 the Growth Board development 
programme was commissioned. This six-month supported programme has 
explored how issues relating to housing, infrastructure, and funding can be jointly 
addressed in future.  This programme reached a major milestone at the 
September Growth Board meeting where an ambitious forward work programme 
was approved and the transition into an implementation phase was started. 

1.3 At the September meeting Leaders also agreed to develop a Memorandum of 
Understanding to signal their intent to work collaboratively on place-based issues 
to central government, partners, and Hertfordshire residents.  This document 
would help set out the objectives of the work to be undertaken through the 
Hertfordshire Growth Board, the principles which the parties will apply to their 
work and to working with each other, and what is – and what is not – within its 
scope. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 Cabinet agree to the Memorandum of Understanding set out in Appendix 1 to this 
report. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Since September 2018 the Hertfordshire Leaders and Local Enterprise 
Partnership Chair have been collaborating through the Hertfordshire Growth 
Board.  Together they have undertaken the Growth Board Development 
Programme, which has allowed the leaders to identify their key growth 
challenges, emerging programmes of work, and key features of an emerging 
proposition to government.  Work is now taking place to move those programmes 
into implementation and to deepen our ongoing collaborative ways of working 
and engagement with central government. 

3.2 The Leaders of the District Councils, County Councils, and the Local Enterprise 
Partnership agreed at the September 2019 Hertfordshire Growth Board meeting 
to develop a Memorandum of Understanding to be considered by the 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7a



- 2 - 

Hertfordshire Growth Board at its meeting on 15th October.  The Memorandum 
of Understanding attached to these papers has now been considered by the 
Growth Board and is recommended for agreement by all the Hertfordshire 
Councils and the Local Enterprise Partnership Board. 

3.3 In terms of scope and content, the Memorandum of Understanding sets out the 
Core Objectives and Aims of working through the Hertfordshire Growth Board 
and the Principles of Partnership between the parties to the agreement.  It also 
makes clear what is in and what is not within the scope of the work of the 
Hertfordshire Growth Board: 

 The objectives of the collaboration focus on taking a broader place-
based approach to strategic planning for development, infrastructure, 
transport, climate change, and economy.  The aims of the collaboration 
expand on the work that the parties might undertake through the 
Hertfordshire Growth Board to help achieve these objectives. 

 The principles set out some of the benefits to be achieved through 
partnership working, using the two-tier system at its best, responding to 
wider challenges, providing leadership of place, and increasing impact.  
It also sets out the principles of how the parties will work together, how 
they will undertake placemaking in Hertfordshire, and approaches 
towards governance.  

 The scope of the Memorandum of Understanding makes clear that any 
council exercising any particular function shall continue to do so – 
including local plans, housing, and development management. 

3.4 The Memorandum of Understanding has a number of legal terms and conditions, 
which are summarised as follows:   

 It is not enforceable in law and cannot override existing statutes; 

 Parties are free to withdraw individually at any point, and the 
Memorandum of Understanding shall wholly terminate if the growth 
board dissolves; and 

 It is amendable only by the unanimous written consent of all its 
members. 

3.5 Drafts of the MOU have been circulated through the Chief Executives and 
Leaders groups and amended as a result of feedback.  The attached version has 
the support of the Growth Board to go forward through individual Councils 
democratic processes. 

3.6 The draft Memorandum of Understanding, if adopted by the Councils and the 
Local Enterprise Partnership, will give a very clear signal to Government and 
partners about the Hertfordshire joint working ambition.  It will also demonstrate 
how the Growth Board’s members are providing place-based leadership and 
governance across Hertfordshire and is maturing as a body that government can 
talk with about an enhanced collaborative relationship in future. 

  

Page 8



- 3 - 

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The MoU has been considered by the Legal team and the legal considerations 
are set out in paragraph 3.4. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The signing of the MOU does not commit any Hertfordshire Council or the Local 
Enterprise Partnership to expenditure at this stage.  The work of the Growth 
Board is evolving and at present is being funded in-kind or through use of the 
Growth Fund established for use by the Growth Board through the retained 
Business Rates Pilot Funds secured for Hertfordshire. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

6.2 Reputational risks  

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 None. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 None. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 None. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 None. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 None. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 A press release and communications approach has been agreed by the 
Hertfordshire Growth Board and engagement events with councillors and officers 
are taking place. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 This links to all Corporate Priorities. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 

Page 9



- 4 - 

Name of author Rob Bridge 
Title Chief Executive 
Date 16th December 2019 
 
Appendices 1 - Hertfordshire Growth Board Memorandum of Understanding October 
2019 

Page 10



Appendix 1 

 
HERTFORDSHIRE GROWTH BOARD 
Memorandum of Understanding 

October 2019 
 

  

  

  

 
 

 
 

  

  
 

Page 11

https://www.dacorum.gov.uk/
https://www.hertsmere.gov.uk/home.aspx
https://www.stalbans.gov.uk/


2  

Hertfordshire Growth Board Memorandum of Understanding October 2019 

Memorandum of Understanding 

 
Between 

 
Broxbourne Borough Council 

Dacorum Borough Council 
East Herts District Council 

Hertfordshire County Council 
Hertsmere Borough Council 

North Hertfordshire District Council 
St Albans City and District Council 

Stevenage Borough Council 
Three Rivers District Council 

Watford Borough Council 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership 
 

The local authorities listed above comprising of county council, district councils and 
borough councils are together referred to as “Local Authorities”. The Hertfordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership is referred to as the “LEP”. The Local Authorities and the LEP are 
collectively referred to in this Memorandum of Understanding as the “Partners”. A list of 
the Partners and their principal addresses are listed at Schedule 1 “the Partners”.  

     
1. Purpose 

1.1. The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is for the Partners to: 

 Raise awareness of their joint working intent to Hertfordshire residents, 
partners, businesses and central government; 

 commit to continued collaborative place-based working across Hertfordshire; 

 set out the joint working intention between the Partners; and 

 demonstrate how they will work together as equal stakeholders with different 
roles to manage future growth in Hertfordshire. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1. Since September 2018, the Partners have been working collaboratively through the 
Hertfordshire Growth Board – an alliance consisting of the Leaders of all of the Local 
Authorities and the Chair of the LEP. Together, the Partners are responding to the 
place leadership and growth challenges that face Hertfordshire now and in the 
future and are committed to ensuring that the Partners work in a proactive, positive 
and inclusive way. 

 
2.2. To date, the Partners have identified the following growth challenges: 

 demand for residential homes of a variety of types and tenures; 

 need for infrastructure and local services serving both new and existing 
residents; 

 securing jobs and inward business investment within Hertfordshire; 

 responding to growth pressures from outside Hertfordshire in a considered 
and appropriate way; 

Page 12



3  

Hertfordshire Growth Board Memorandum of Understanding October 2019 

 pressure on green belt and providing a sustainable and high-quality 
environment, and 

 the threat climate change poses to the county and its residents. 
Through the exploration of the joint place-based ambitions that the Partners have 
been developing, working together to achieve this challenge will result in positive 
benefits for Hertfordshire, now and in the future. 

 
2.3. The Partners are keen to ensure that growth delivers for both current and future 

Hertfordshire residents and supports a thriving county. The three pillars of the 
Hertfordshire Growth Board will be people, place and prosperity. People means 
enabling happy, healthy, diverse communities who feel they belong in Hertfordshire 
and can benefit from its successes. Place means making places contribute to 
people's health, happiness, and wellbeing without compromising the future or our 
environment. Prosperity means delivering Hertfordshire’s contribution to the UK 
and national economy while maintaining and further developing a sustainable local 
economy that creates value for Hertfordshire residents.  

 
2.4. Hertfordshire is a net contributor to the UK economy, and good growth is key to 

ensuring that the Partners continue to build on that while locally providing good 
quality jobs, skills, and opportunities for all Hertfordshire residents. Hertfordshire’s 
location between London and the Oxford-Cambridge Arc and its unique ‘offer’ make 
the Partners perfectly placed to work with government and co-create ideas and 
solutions to meet the challenges and maintain the momentum and growth of UK plc 
that benefits all of Hertfordshire. However, in parts of Hertfordshire our 
productivity is falling behind the national average, and without change, we risk not 
being able to deliver on local and national economic objectives. 

 
2.5. This Memorandum of Understanding builds on a history of successful partnership 

working in Hertfordshire on issues like property, infrastructure and planning as well 
as the two emerging joint strategic spatial planning partnerships in North East 
Central Herts and South West Herts. 

 
2.6.  This Memorandum of Understanding sets out: 

 the core objectives and aims of the Hertfordshire Growth Board; and 

 the principles of collaboration for Hertfordshire 
subject to the terms and conditions set out within this Memorandum of 
Understanding.  

 
3. Core Objectives and Aims 
 

3.1. The core objective of the Hertfordshire Growth Board is to respond to the key 
growth challenges facing Hertfordshire. The Partners have agreed a set of place-
based ambitions and agreed to work together on delivering those ambitions 
through the future work programme: 

 Strategic planning and positioning – the need to raise Hertfordshire’s profile 
and secure central government support for scaled and accelerated delivery, 
helping to overcome the challenges faced by the local plan system, and growing 
strategic employment and housing corridors within Hertfordshire;  

Page 13



4  

Hertfordshire Growth Board Memorandum of Understanding October 2019 

 Homes – the need to overcome market failure to deliver the housing 
Hertfordshire needs. This includes more social and affordable housing; good 
and inclusive growth that delivers sustainable communities, housing, and places 
into the future; and accommodating housing and economic growth with 
sustainable construction and excellent design that does not compromise the 
attractiveness of our existing places;  

 Infrastructure – the need to access sufficient forward funding to put 
‘infrastructure in first’ ahead of development delivery, reduce our carbon 
footprint, and plan for active and sustainable travel; and 

 Economy – the need to further unlock the potential of our key sectors, stimulate 
new sectors, and create quality local jobs growth, in alignment with the 
emerging Local Industrial Strategy.  
 

3.2. The Hertfordshire Growth Board will support the Partners to lead on, facilitate and 
support each other to collectively fulfil this core objective.   

 
3.3. The Hertfordshire Growth Board, through its future work programme commitments 

aims to: 

 Set out the shared vision for place and growth in Hertfordshire and the 
strategic priorities that will guide how the Partners collectively respond to 
demographic, economic and social challenges and work together for the 
continued success of a thriving Hertfordshire; 

 Identify investment opportunities and potential sources of funding, including 
from central government, from private sources and locally, and where 
appropriate agree investment locally for the benefit of Hertfordshire; 

 Speak with one voice to central government, academia, delivery partners, 
business and Hertfordshire residents, taking advantage of its place narrative 
and the scale of twelve Partners coming together; 

 Agree and deliver on Partners’ shared priorities for infrastructure investment 
and development now and in the future; 

 Lead on developing and securing the emerging agreement with central 
government to support infrastructure and housing, engaging with central 
government to secure buy-in, and acting as the accountable body for 
governance and delivery; 

 Support the North East Central Herts and South West Herts planning 
partnerships and help facilitate strategic alignment of the joint planning work 
undertaken with each other and adjacent Local Planning Authorities. 

 
4. Principles of Partnership 
 

4.1.  The Partners recognise the following benefits of stronger partnership working on 
place-based working in Hertfordshire: 

 Building on the strengths of the two-tier system of local government, delivering 
at a local level while solving problems at a larger scale; 

 Identifying and delivering local needs in collaboration with other strategic 
partners such as NHS, Police Constabulary and local businesses; 

Page 14



5  

Hertfordshire Growth Board Memorandum of Understanding October 2019 

 Responding to challenges that extend beyond local authority boundaries such 
as strategic infrastructure delivery, traffic congestion, air quality, carbon 
reduction and affordable housing; 

 Providing leadership of place at a county wide scale, helping to deliver joined 
up strategic and spatial planning appropriate for Hertfordshire’s villages, towns, 
and cathedral city; 

 Delivering at scale, with greater impact (the sum of what the Partners deliver 
together being greater than the sum of each individual authority’s part) and 
with a single voice and message that commands the attention of government, 
investors and residents. 

 
4.2. The Partners agree to the following principles to achieve the core objectives and 

aims set out in paragraph 3 above: 

 The shared growth agenda – the Partners will individually work towards the 
Partners’ shared growth challenges and ambitions, and in alignment with a 
collective coherent growth programme. The Partners may take advantage of 
their collective scale to maximise impact and shall endeavour to work across 
departments, authorities and boundaries; 

 Strategic alignment – the Partners will seek strategic alignment with the 
emerging Hertfordshire Local Industrial Strategy, the emerging North East 
Central Herts and South West Herts Joint Strategic Spatial Plans, other groups 
and forums within Hertfordshire, regional bodies and neighbouring areas; 

 Governance – the Partners will collectively secure the right governance, 
scrutiny, and transparency arrangements for the Hertfordshire Growth Board 
and underlying programmes, mindful of our local political environment and 
two-tier system of government. Local identity is one of Hertfordshire’s 
strengths and the Partners will ensure that local identities and voices are not 
lost, and that pragmatic and flexible policies reflect local need;  

 Designed around places – the Partners will support the development of Joint 
Strategic Spatial Plans and adopt a place-based delivery approach that 
addresses our shared challenges – connectivity, affordable homes, inclusive 
economic growth, protecting the environment, tacking climate change, and 
building healthy, safe communities; 

 Collaboration – the Partners will ensure that they use and support existing 
successful examples of joint working across Hertfordshire where appropriate 
and will share and build on the substantial best practice and expertise that has 
been developed by each individual Partner. Each Partner will work effectively 
with its stakeholders, including residents, the private sector and academia; and   

 Programme governance approach – the Partners will adopt robust project and 
programme management disciplines to bring pace, momentum and manage 
progress in achieving growth outcomes; and 

 Resourcing – Partners will work together and with Government to put the 
resources that are necessary in place to deliver the core ambitions of the 
programme. 

 
5. Scope of Memorandum of Understanding 
 

Page 15



6  

Hertfordshire Growth Board Memorandum of Understanding October 2019 

5.1.  The Partners intend to work together to enable good growth in Hertfordshire, 
subject to each individual Partner making decisions in accordance with its own 
decision-making process and the right to exercise its powers accordingly. Nothing in 
this Memorandum of Understanding shall affect the sovereignty of any individual 
Partner.  

5.2. Each individual Partner agrees that the following shall remain in the domain of each 
individual Partner:  

 decisions regarding housing and employment numbers, targets, and sites shall 
remain the responsibility of each Local Authority; 

 development management shall remain the responsibility of each Local 
Authority; and 

 discharging any function currently the responsibility of any Partner will remain 
the responsibility of that partner exercising that function. 

5.3. The Growth Board will operate in accordance with its agreed Terms of Reference. 
 
6. Term and Termination 
 

6.1. This Memorandum of Understanding shall commence on the date of the final 
signature of the Partners; 

6.2. This Memorandum of Understanding shall wholly terminate if the Hertfordshire 
Growth Board is dissolved by a majority vote.  

6.3. Any individual Partner may withdraw from this Memorandum of Understanding by 
giving 30 days written notice to the Hertfordshire Growth Board. The future of any 
projects and work streams that the individual Partner is involved in at the date of 
withdrawal shall be agreed by the Hertfordshire Growth Board and any individual 
Partner agrees that involvement may continue (financial or otherwise) until the end 
of the project or work stream unless agreed otherwise.   

 
7. Variation 
 

7.1. This Memorandum of Understanding may be varied by written agreement of all of 
the Partners. 

7.2. The Partners shall review this Memorandum of Understanding on an annual basis. 
 
8. Charges and Liabilities 
 

8.1. Unless expressly agreed by the Hertfordshire Growth Board, each Partner shall bear 
their own costs and expenses incurred in complying with their obligations under this 
Memorandum of Understanding.  

 
9. Status 
 

9.1. This Memorandum of Understanding is not intended to be legally binding and no 
legal obligations or legal rights shall arise between the parties from this 
Memorandum of Understanding.   

9.2. This Memorandum of Understanding cannot override the statutory duties and 
powers of the Partners.   

Page 16



7  

Hertfordshire Growth Board Memorandum of Understanding October 2019 

9.3. Nothing in this Memorandum of Understanding shall constitute a partnership or 
joint venture between any of the Partners.  

9.4. Notwithstanding paragraph 9.1 above, each Partner covenants with the other 
Partners that they shall act in good faith towards the others and agrees to work 
together in accordance with this Memorandum of Understanding. 
 

Signed by: 
 

Local Authority Leader Chief Executive Date 

Broxbourne Borough 
Council 

   

Dacorum Borough Council    

East Herts District Council    

Hertfordshire County 
Council 

   

Hertsmere Borough 
Council 

   

North Hertfordshire 
District Council 

   

St Albans District Council    

Stevenage Borough 
Council 

   

Three Rivers District 
Council 

   

Watford Borough Council    

Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council 

   

Local Enterprise 
Partnership 

Chair Chief Executive Date 

Hertfordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership 

   

  

Page 17



8  

Hertfordshire Growth Board Memorandum of Understanding October 2019 

Schedule 1 – The Partners 
 
BROXBOURNE BOROUGH COUNCIL whose principal address is: Bishops College, 
Churchgate, Cheshunt EN8 9XG 
 
DACORUM BOROUGH COUNCIL whose principal address is: The Forum, Marlowes, 
Hemel Hempstead HP1 1HH 
 
EAST HERTS DISTRICT COUNCIL whose principal address is: Wallfields, Pegs Lane, 
Hertford SG13 8EQ 
 
HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL whose principal address is at County Hall, Pegs 
Lane, Hertford SG13 8DE 
 
HERTSMERE BOROUGH COUNCIL whose principal address is: Civic Offices, Elstree Way, 
Borehamwood WD6 1WN 
 
NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL whose principal address is: Council 
Offices, Gernon Rd, Letchworth Garden City SG6 3JF 
 
ST ALBANS CITY & DISTRICT COUNCIL whose principal address is: Civic Centre, St 
Peter's St, St Albans AL1 3JE 

 
STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL whose principal address is: Daneshill House, 
Danestrete, Stevenage SG1 1HN 

 
THREE RIVERS DISTRICT COUNCIL whose principal address is: Three Rivers House, 
Northway, Rickmansworth WD3 1RL 
 
WATFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL whose principal address is: Town Hall, Watford WD17 
3EX 
 
WELYWN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL whose principal address is: The Campus, 
Welwyn Garden City AL8 6AE 

 
HERTFORDSHIRE LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP whose principal address is: One 
Garden City, Broadway, Letchworth Garden City, SG6 3BF 

Page 18



 

Part I 
Main author: Paul Underwood 
Executive Member: Tony Kingsbury 
All Wards 

       
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET – 16 DECEMBER 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 

PERFORMANCE EXCEPTION REPORT – QUARTER 2 (2019-20) 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report summarises our strategic performance data on an exception basis following 
the monitoring and review of performance reports by Corporate Directors and Heads of 
Service. This report covers the period 1 July to 30 September 2019.  

1.2 Any targets reported at this meeting as ‘not completed’ or ‘target not met’, is exception 
reported in the appendices to this report. High rated risks are also summarised. 

2 Recommendation 
 

2.1 That Cabinet note the contents of this report and approves any proposed actions 
highlighted in the appendices. 

3. Explanation 

3.1 A performance exception report is presented to the Cabinet on a quarterly basis as part 
of our current performance management framework. 

3.2 By working with Corporate Directors and Heads of Service in the production of the clinic 
report, we further embed accountability for performance and risk within our Officer 
structure. This allows for a flow of detailed information to and from the council’s 
leadership. 

 
4. Legal Implications 

4.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from the contents of this report. 
 
5. Financial Implications 

 
5.1       Failure to deliver targets and key performance indicators may have a financial impact for 

the council. Where this is the case, this will be referenced in the relevant text within the 
report and associated appendices. Any financial impact will also be considered, and 
reported where necessary, within the quarterly budget monitoring reports. 

 
5.2       Many of the risks detailed within the report would have financial implications for the 

council if a risk were to materialise. These risks require active management to ensure 
that any financial risk is minimised. Where a risk materialises and has a financial impact, 
this will be referenced in the relevant text within the report and appendices, and within 
the quarterly budget monitoring reports. 

 
6. Risk Management Implications 

6.1 A risk assessment of our performance management framework can be reviewed 
quarterly on the council’s strategic Risk Register. 

 
  

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



 

7. Security and Terrorism Implications 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications directly arising from the contents of this 
report. 

8. Procurement Implications 

8.1 There are no procurement implications directly arising from the contents of this report. 

9. Climate Change Implications 

9.1 There are no direct climate change implications directly arising from the contents of this 
report. 

10. Health and Wellbeing Implications 

10.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications directly arising from the contents of this 
report. 

11. Communication and Engagement Implications 

11.1 There are no communication and engagement implications directly arising from the 
contents of this report. 

12. Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 This report is linked to all the council’s current corporate priorities as it shows the status 
of all business, finance and performance targets associated within each priority. 

 
13. Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An Equality Impact Assessment was not completed because this report does not 
propose changes to existing service-related policies or the development of new service 
related policies. 

 
 
Name of Author: Paul Underwood (01707) 357220 
Title: Head of Policy and Culture 
Date: November 2019 
 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Appendix One  - Business Plan Targets  
 
Appendix Two  -  Key Performance Indicators  
 
Appendix Three - Strategic Risks 
 
Appendix Four  - Operational Risks

Page 20



 

 

Appendix One 
 

Business Plan Targets – Quarter 2  
 

 
Progress for all 2019-20 targets under each of our five Corporate Priorities is summarised here.  
 
18 of the 115 targets have been completed so far this year and 95 are on schedule. 2 targets are currently not on schedule and this is shown below.  

 

Corporate Priority 

Purple 
(completed) 

Amber 
(on schedule – with 

some risks) 
 

Green 
(on schedule – 
with no risks) 

Red 
(not on  

schedule) 
Total 

1 – Our Community 

 
1 

(3%) 

 
16 

(50%) 
 

 
15 

(47%) 

 
0 

(0%) 

 
32 

(100%) 

2 – Our Environment 

 
1 

(8%) 

 
1 

(8%) 
 

 
10 

(84%) 

 
0 

(0%) 

 
12 

(100%) 

3 – Our Housing 

 
7 

(32%) 

 
5 

(23%) 
 

 
9 

(41%) 

 
1 

(4%) 

 
22 

(100%) 

4 – Our Economy 

 
4 

(15%) 

 
2 

(8%) 
 

 
19 

(73%) 

 
1 

(4%) 

 
26 

(100%) 

 
5 – Our Council 
 

 
5 

(22%) 

 
4 

(17%) 

 
14 

(61%) 

 
0 

(0%) 
 

 
23 

(100%) 

Totals 

 
18 

(16%) 

 
28 

(24%) 
 

 
67 

(58%) 

 
2 

(2%) 

 
115 

(100%) 

 

P
age 21



 

 

 

Business 
Plan Ref 

Target By  
When 

Head of  
Service 

Service  
Comments 

3.1.8 
Prepare, submit, exam and adopt 
the Local Plan 

March 
2020 

Head of 
Planning 

 
A new timetable was agreed with the planning 
inspector, which would have seen hearing sessions on 
housing and employment evidence take place in 
December 2019 and on new sites in March 2020.   
 
Since this timetable was proposed however the 
government has called a general election and purdah 
extends from 11 November to 12 December. This 
means it will not be possible for officers to publish their 
site recommendations until mid-December, which has a 
consequent impact on the timetable.   
 
The inspector has also written to the council to suggest 
that a further period of consultation on new sites may 
be appropriate, so that interested parties have the 
opportunity to comment and attend the hearing 
session. The council is minded to arrange a six week 
period of public consultation and re-present the results 
to councillors before submitting any new sites and 
policy changes to the inspector for examination.   
 
Officers are currently in the process of identifying a new 
timetable for the appropriate committee meetings and 
consultation period.  All of this is likely to impact on the 
overall timetable and delay the main modifications, 
inspector’s report and adoption stages. 
 

  

P
age 22



 

 

Business 
Plan Ref 

Target By  
When 

Head of  
Service 

Service  
Comments 

4.3.2 

 
Prepare, submit, examine and adopt 
the Local Plan, which contains a 
policy to provide 116,400 sqm new 
employment land and 12,500 sqm 
new retail floor space 
 

 
 

March 
2020 

 
 

Head of 
Planning Please see service comments for 3.1.8. 

  

P
age 23



 

 

Appendix Two 
 
 

Key Performance Indicators – Quarter 2  
 

 
A summary of our Key Performance Indicators collected over Quarter 2 is shown here. 

 
 

Total Number of  
Key Performance 

Indicators 

 
KPI targets  

met / exceeded 
 

KPI targets  
not met 

KPI targets met 
within tolerance 

 
41 

(100%) 
 

 
31 

(76%) 

 
9 

(22%) 

 
1 

(2%) 

 
 

 
9 Key Performance Indicators did not meet their targets this quarter. These are exception reported here, along with service comments to explain the 
performance and a comparison to last year. 

 

  

P
age 24



 

 

 

Brief description 
of indicator 

Quarter 2 
2018-19  

Performance 

Quarter 2 
2019-20  

Performance 
Service Comments 

Target Outturn Target Outturn 

KPI 11 - Visits in person to, and use 
of, local museums and galleries (per 
1,000 population) 
 
Head of Policy & Culture 

62  
visits 

54  
visits 

62 
visits 

53  
visits 

 
We are disappointed to be below target despite a busy 
summer holiday period with many families enjoying a varied 
number of themed activities and events. These included a 
very successful Classic Car and Vintage Day in July and a 
Teddy Bear Fun Day in August.  
 
The Herts CC Virtual School were only able to operate the 
Miller's Tearoom for 4 weeks in August - usually they are on 
site for 6-7 weeks - which has impacted on visitor numbers. 
Our recent recruitment of a part time Café Supervisor for 25 
hours per week will improve our catering offer as we move 
into 2020-21 and will draw more casual visitors to Mill Green. 
 

 
KPI 12 - School group visits to, and 
use of, museums and galleries 
 
Head of Policy & Culture 
 

400 567 400 290 

 
Not meeting the Quarter 2 target was expected as we only 
had a Learning Officer in post for 20 weeks this year between 
March and August. 10 of these weeks were taken up in 
delivering holiday activities over the late Spring and Summer 
periods. We are in the process of replacing this 22.5 hour per 
week role. Staff and volunteers are working hard to deliver all 
taught sessions to meet the school bookings made for the 
autumn months and maintain our high standards. 
 
Teacher feedback has been very positive this year with much 
larger school groups now wishing to attend to reduce their 
transport costs. However this does put pressure on both of 
our managed sites and the staff and volunteers who deliver 
these visits.  
 

P
age 25



 

 

Brief description 
of indicator 

Quarter 2 
2018-19  

Performance 

Quarter 2 
2019-20  

Performance 
Service Comments 

 
KPI 27 - The percentage of major 
planning appeals allowed against the 
council's decision, as a percentage 
of the total number of planning 
appeals 
 
Head of Planning 
 

less than 
10% 

0% 
less than 

10% 
100% 

One planning appeal decision on a major planning application 
was received in this quarter. That appeal was allowed. Given 
the low overall number of appeals, just losing one results in a 
performance of 100%. Very few major planning applications 
result in appeal proceedings and so this is not considered to 
be indicative of any wider trend. 

 
KPI 29 - The maximum number of 
households living in temporary 
accommodation in the borough 
(where the council has a duty) 
 
Head of Community & Housing 
Strategy 
 

75 117 75 120 

 
Levels of temporary accommodation use continue to exceed 
desirable levels, but a sustained period without the need for 
hotel use has been welcome.  
 
The post of temporary accommodation manager has now 
been filled for over 6 months, and this has led to a clear 
process for the allocation of accommodation and a swift 
turnaround of void units to ensure that accommodation is 
available when needed. Recently, more focus on prioritising 
homeless decisions is leading to faster move ons out of 
temporary accommodation. 
 

P
age 26



 

 

Brief description 
of indicator 

Quarter 2 
2018-19  

Performance 

Quarter 2 
2019-20  

Performance 
Service Comments 

KPI 30 - The number of Decent 
Home assessments undertaken in 
properties in the Private Sector 
 
Head of Community & Housing 
Strategy 

125 136 200 158 

 
The number of assessments varies according to the amount 
of reactive and programmed inspections compared to the 
degree of proactive work to identify and confirm suspected 
HMO’s.  
 
The amount of reactive and programmed work has been 
lower than expected this year, mainly due to fewer than 
expected applications for HMO licences. The team are 
currently undertaking a targeted pro-active ‘door knocking’ 
exercise in an attempt to identify unlicensed HMOs. This 
proactive project started in August this year and was focused 
in the Knightsfield area of Welwyn Garden City. To date we 
have knocked on 741 homes. Although this did not directly 
produce any unlicensed HMO's we generated some Disabled 
Facilities Grant enquiries and raised the profile of 
the project via our communications team.  
 
There have been 10 new applications for HMO licenses since 
August 2019 when this campaign started. We are now in the 
process of completing stage two concentrating around the 
QE11 hospital. Once we have finished this geographical area 
we will carry out an evaluation of our strategy. The total 
number of new license applications received since the change 
in the law in October 2018 is 266. 
 

KPI 34 - The percentage of council 
properties with a valid gas safety 
certificate 
 
Head of Property Services 

100.00% 99.99% 100.00% 99.98% 

 
At the end of this Quarter, just 2 out of the 8,808 properties 
with a gas supply held a valid and in date gas safety 
certificates. The 2 properties that were non-compliant were 
referred to the council legal team who secured court 
injunctions to gain access. This was effected and these 2 
properties were brought back into compliance by 4 October 
2019. At the time of completing this service comment we are 
100% compliant. 
 

P
age 27



 

 

Brief description 
of indicator 

Quarter 2 
2018-19  

Performance 

Quarter 2 
2019-20  

Performance 
Service Comments 

KPI 35 - Current council tenant 
arrears as a percentage of the 
annual rent debit 
 
Head of Housing Operations 

1.80% 2.78% 2.20% 2.41% 

 
Performance is currently 2.41%, which is slightly above the 
target of 2.20%. However this is a big improvement compared 
to the same period last year which was 2.78%, representing 
an arrears reduction of £172k.  
 
The team continues to work closely with residents and 
support them, making sure they can sustain their tenancies. 
This is demonstrated by a lower number of evictions 
compared to this time last year.  
 
Universal Credit cases continue to increase. Currently we 
have 1,289 cases, which is an increase of 562 compared to 
the same period last year. 
 

 
KPI 58 - The percentage of minor 
and other planning appeals allowed 
against the council’s decision as a 
percentage of the total number of 
planning appeals against refusals of 
planning applications 
 
Head of Planning 
 

less than 
10.00% 

50.00% 
less than 
10.00% 

45.45% 

 
11 appeal decisions were received in this quarter, of which 5 
were allowed. Therefore the target was not met.  
 
The number of appeal decisions received in any quarter can 
vary significantly, and the Planning Inspectorate is presently 
experiencing a significant backlog in its decision making. 
Furthermore, when decisions are issued they are being sent 
in batches, which means that the number received at any one 
time is not necessarily a good indicator of the quality of the 
decisions being made.  
 
Officers will continue to monitor any identifiable trends in 
decision making by the Inspectorate, and consider adapting 
local approaches accordingly. 
 

P
age 28



 

 

Brief description 
of indicator 

Quarter 2 
2018-19  

Performance 

Quarter 2 
2019-20  

Performance 
Service Comments 

KPI 62 - The level of sundry debt as 
an average number of days to collect 
(Debtor Days) 
 
Head of Resources 

38  
days 

36 
days 

37 
days 

40.8 
days 

 
The performance in Quarter 2 was outside the target, as the 
average days it takes for a debtor to pay has increased over 
the quarter. This was in large part due to the delay in the 
payment of significant value invoices issued to other councils 
over the summer period.  
 
Debt for this quarter, particularly in the 91 days+ category, 
has reduced compared to Quarter 1. 
 

 
  

P
age 29



 

 

Appendix Three 
 

Strategic Risks 
 

Our Risk Register enables the reporting of all strategic risks using a traffic light system to determine both their impact and probability of occurrence. 
Strategic risks are assessed by the responsible Corporate Director and their Executive Member based on current circumstances and can be reviewed 
every quarter. 

All strategic risks are summarised here: 
 
 

Current  
Strategic Risks 

 

Red 

(High over 50) 

Amber 

(Medium 21-50) 

Yellow 

(Low 10-20) 

Green 

(Very Low  1-9) 

1 
(7%) 

14 
(93%) 

 
0 

(0%) 

 
0 

(0%) 
 

 
 
 
There is one current Red strategic risk assessed for the borough’s draft Local Plan.  
 
Amber strategic risks were reported for Health and Safety, Homelessness, Community Consultation and Engagement, Safeguarding, Communications, 
Staff / Workforce, ICT Failure, Data Protection, Finance, Management of Council Owned Property Assets, Management of Council Owned Non-Housing 
Property, Corporate Resilience, Prevent and Change Management.   
 
Mitigation plans and risk controls are in place for all of our current strategic risks. A separate and more detailed risk management report is reported to 
Cabinet. 
 
 

P
age 30



 

 

Appendix Four 
 

Operational Risks  
 
 
Operational risks are assessed by our services on the council’s Risk Register. This is done in the same way as strategic risks but they are unique to 
individual services.   
 
There is currently one operational risk reported as Red across our services. This is Planning – Housing Land Supply. 
 
Red risks can be re-assessed by a Head of Service or Corporate Director at any time, which may lead to them reducing to either Amber or Green or 
remaining at Red. Risk owners are also prompted by the council’s Risk and Resilience Manager to review them every quarter.  
 

  

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Part I 
Main author: Thom Burn 
Executive Member: Cllr Terry Mitchinson 
All Wards 
 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET – 16 DECEMBER 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 

COUNCIL ACHIEVEMENTS LIST (JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2019) 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report collates and summarises the council’s key achievements and service 
improvements for Quarter 2 of 2019-20. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Cabinet notes the report and contents of this Achievements List. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Appendix A highlights the council’s achievements taken from our press releases, 
decisions taken at committees, community-based activities and events and 
business plan or service plan targets achieved for the quarter.  

3.2 The Achievements List is checked with relevant Corporate Directors and Heads of 
Service as part of its preparation every quarter. 

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from the contents of this report. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the contents of this report. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 There are no direct risk implications arising from the contents of this report as it 
collates and reports on actions already completed and/or information already in the 
public domain. 

7 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no direct security and terrorism implications arising from the contents of 
this report. 

 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 9



 

 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no direct procurement implications arising from the contents of this 
report. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no direct climate change implications arising from the contents of this 
report 

10. Health and Wellbeing Implications 

10.1 There are no direct health and wellbeing implications arising from the contents of 
this report. 

11        Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

11.1 The Achievements List contains information about press releases issued, and 
whether they were used by local media. A summary of achievements over the 
relevant period will be published in each edition of One Welwyn Hatfield magazine. 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 This report is linked to the all of the council’s corporate priorities, specifically to Our 
Council (effectively communicate what we do and how we perform). 

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An Equality Impact Assessment was not completed because this report does not 
propose changes to existing service-related policies or the development of new 
service-related policies. 

 
 
Name of author Thom Burn (01707) 357245 
Title Policy and Communications Manager 
Date November 2019 
 
 
 
Appendix A   Council Achievements List (Q2, 2019-20). 

Page 34



Appendix A: Council Achievements List 2019-20 (Quarter 2, July - September 2019) 
 

Corporate Priorities  
 
One – Our Community 
Two – Our Environment 
Three – Our Housing 
Four – Our Economy 
Five – Our Council 
 
(Press releases: U: Used by local media, N: Not used by local media, x: not yet published.) 
 

Achievement Source 
Corporate 
Priority 

July 2019 

 
Changes to the Estate Management Scheme were proposed to assist in maintaining the 
character of Welwyn Garden City. If approved it would cover the areas of Handside, Digswell, 
Hatfield Hyde, Hall Grove, Panshanger, Peartree and the town centre. Consultation was set to 
run to 6 September. 
 

Press Release (U) Three 

 
Resolve’s night shelter and café for homeless people was opened in Hatfield. The council has 
provided the charity with a lease and met some of its initial costs. It was formally opened by the 
Mayor. 
 

Press Release (U) Three 

 
Regeneration plans for 1 and 3-9 Town Centre Hatfield were unveiled at a series of public drop 
in events in the town centre. This proposal is seen as a crucial step in the ongoing regeneration 
of the town centre and to breathe new life into Hatfield and its economy. 
 

Press Release (U) Four 

P
age 35



Achievement Source 
Corporate 
Priority 

 
Plans were announced to move Hatfield Library into White Lion Square on the site of the former 
Poundworld store. This will provide better access to local and improved services and help to 
ensure the town centre continues to thrive as part of its wider regeneration work. 
 

Press Release (U) Four 

 
The planning application for the new Splashlands facility was approved to create a wet and dry 
adventure play area centred around a splash pad. Over 500 votes were cast by the public to 
decide on a new logo and construction is scheduled to commence over the autumn months. 
 

Press Release (U) One 

 
Over 400 people attended Mill Green’s Classic Car and Vintage Day, many dressed in their best 
vintage outfits, to enjoy live music, Lindy Hop dance demonstrations, and many art and craft 
stalls.  
 

Press Release (U) One 

 
More than 500 Welwyn Hatfield schoolchildren attended the annual primary school games held 
in the Gosling Sports Park. 16 schools and 32 teams participated in Olympic events including 
curling, archery, skateboarding, boxing and fencing with each team representing a country which 
will attend Tokyo 2020. This event was run together with the local Schools Sports Partnership.  
 

Press Release (U) One 

August 2019 

 
A consultation was launched on the future of Queensway House, Hatfield, with tenants and 
residential and commercial leaseholders. Everyone living or working in the block is being asked 
to consider four options which range from continuing to manage and invest in the building to 
demolishing it and redeveloping the site. 
 

Press Release (U) Three 

P
age 36



Achievement Source 
Corporate 
Priority 

 
Big Summer 2019, coordinated by the council, ran from 1-25 August and engaged over 5,000 
young people in a wide range of free and charged for activities and events to keep them 
occupied over the school summer holiday period. It involved over 300 activities with over 30 
partners helping to deliver the programme.  
 

Press Release (U) One 

 
New life saving equipment is now on hand in Welwyn Garden City town centre with the council 
working with Defibrillators in Public Places (DiPPs) to install one outside Snappy Snaps. This 
joins 30 others which are now fitted and available for use across the borough. 
 

Press Release (U) One 

 
Residents and visitors can now refill their water bottles more easily, conveniently, and free of 
charge. Refill Hertfordshire encourages cafes, bars, restaurants and any other public-facing 
businesses with a tap to register themselves as a Refill Station on the Refill app and put a 
sticker in their window alerting passers-by to the fact that they're welcome to fill up their bottles 
free of charge. The council has worked together with Refill Hertfordshire to promote this.  
 

Press Release (U) Two 

September 2019    

 
A new look White Lion Square was opened in Hatfield town centre following the completion of a 
major regeneration project. The square now boasts a completely revamped centre with exciting 
new features including table tennis, children's play equipment, seating areas and cycle parking. 
It is the first stage of a wider town centre regeneration following the refurbishment of some 
shops, flats and offices around the square. 
 

Press Release (U) Four 

P
age 37



Achievement Source 
Corporate 
Priority 

 
The borough's success at the 2019 Anglia in Bloom Awards has been described as exceptional 
by their panel of judges. We took home three Special Awards after the judges shortlisted ten 
local initiatives against hundreds of entrants from across the region. The borough then went on 
to claim two bronze, three silver and two golds in the Category Awards including a best in the 
region accolade for Sherrardspark Wood. The judges also described the colourful view of 
Parkway as very special. 
 

Press Release (U) Two 

 
The way residents pay for parking in council car parks in Welwyn Garden City changed to a pay 
and display system. This covered the car parks at Campus East Lower, Campus West and 
Hunters Bridge. Cash, card and contactless payment options are available, as is the choice to 
pay via an App. Phone and online payments are also accepted.   
 

Press Release (U) Five 

 
Residents have been encouraged to have their say on proposals to preserve the heritage of the 
Peartree area in Welwyn Garden City by designating it as a conservation area. These areas are 
places of special architectural or historical interest and would ensure extra emphasis is given to 
their special character, history and development. 
 

Press Release (U) Two 

 
Operation Balsam launched again to offer residents greater protection from noise disturbances. 
Now in its eleventh year extra noise patrols and an extended reporting hotline went live 
throughout the week from 10pm to 3am.  The service, funded by the University, is additional to 
the weekly out-of-hours noise service (Operation Reprise) which continues to operate on Friday 
and Saturday nights. 
 

Press Release (U) One 

 
Hatfield town centre received another artistic boost courtesy of creative local art students. Pupils 
from Oaklands College, Onslow St Audrey's and Bishop's Hatfield Girls' School created new art 
pieces which adorn three walkways leading to White Lion Square. Creating more opportunities 
for the display of public art is a key part of the Hatfield 2030+ vision for the town. 
 

Press Release (U) Four 

P
age 38



Achievement Source 
Corporate 
Priority 

 
Visitors, volunteers, councillors and council staff celebrated 40 years of Mill Green Mill and 
Museum being open to the public at a special heritage open day. There was a display looking at 
the growth of the museum over the past four decades, local craft demonstrators, the famous 
cream teas and the Mayor was on hand to cut a cake. 
 

Press Release (U) One 

 
It was announced that Campus West Cinema topped the Royal Opera House's Independent 
Cinema League table for 2018-19, which meant it had the best box office results of all 256 
venues across the UK that took part in their season of live opera and ballet broadcasts. 
 

Press Release (U) One 

 P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Part I 
Main author: Paul Underwood 
Executive Member: Cllr Terry Mitchinson 
All Wards 
 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET – 16 DECEMBER 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND CULTURAL 
SERVICES) 

HERTFORDSHIRE YEAR OF CULTURE 2020 – UPDATE 

‘Celebrating, sharing and exploring Hertfordshire’s arts, culture and heritage’ 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report summarises the local and county level preparations that have been completed 
over recent months leading up to the Hertfordshire Year of Culture 2020 (HYOC2020).   

1.2 All Local Authorities, and many other partner organisations across the county, have been 
engaged in a range of meetings and other activities in support of this project. 

2 Recommendation 
 

2.1 That the Cabinet notes the work that has been completed over 2019, and the further work 
in which Officers here will be engaged in mapping different activities and events next year, 
as part of this borough’s contribution to HYOC2020.   

3 Explanation 

3.1 Preparation 

3.1.1 A Borough and District Council Steering Group has met quarterly in March, June and 
September this year. Its frequency will move to monthly from December. It is being chaired 
and coordinated by the Policy Manager at Hertsmere Borough Council, who has been 
partly seconded to coordinate this project. A separate Venues Group has also met twice 
this year to establish how they can support the Year of Culture through their venue 
programmes. This has included representatives from Campus West and Mill Green 
Museum here, as both contribute to the promotion of arts, culture and heritage in this 
borough.  

3.1.2 HYOC2020 representatives have also been out and about raising the profile of this project 
at events such as the Herts Health and Wellbeing Conference (June), the Herts 
Association of Cultural Officers Group (June and September) and the Herts Voluntary 
Sector Conference (September). Over 650 people representing many local organisations 
across the county have directly received information to date. Our own Cultural Consortium 
meeting here, chaired by Councillor Terry Mitchinson, has also received updates at its 
quarterly meetings in April, July and October this year. An Officer and Member Champions 
meeting took place at County Hall in early November at which this council was 
represented.  

3.2 Support  

3.2.1 From the end of September a HYOC2020 factsheet, online toolkit, and activity and 
mapping form have all become available for anyone either online or through the network of 
borough and district lead officers. Each local authority has also received an initial supply of 
branding material including a pop-up banner, a flag, a large selfie photo frame, t-shirts, 

Page 41

Agenda Item 10



 

 

window stickers and pin badges promoting the project. Further stock is being held centrally 
by the project coordinator at Hertsmere BC and can be requested either directly or through 
local lead officers. 

3.2.2 HYOC2020 also has an official mascot– Yoci – and there are two outfits that are available 
for use around the county to advertise and promote activities and events. Use of the 
mascot outfits are free but they must be booked through Hertsmere BC, and the activity or 
event organiser must find a willing volunteer to get in it.  

3.3 Themes 

3.3.1 HYOC2020 has been divided into monthly themes as this format worked well in the 
Hertfordshire Year of Physical Activity 2018. This guides those wishing to participate in it to 
select an appropriate month in which to hold their activity or event as there will be central 
PR and promotion for it. But it is not exclusive and activities and events can happen at any 
time in the year. The themes are: 

Month Theme 

January Try Something New 

February Skills Development and Volunteering 

March Access the Arts 

April Go Somewhere Local 

May The Big Outdoors 

June Big Ideas 

July Cultural Olympiad 

August Families and Friends 

September Heritage and History 

October Be Inspired and Get back Into 

November Creative Minds and Industries 

December Celebrate and Illuminate 

 

3.3.2 While we know of activities and events which are already happening throughout 2020 our 
initial focus is on January to March. We are populating a local spreadsheet for each month 
and we will be sharing this with the county coordinator at the monthly steering group 
meetings. 

3.4 Participation 

3.4.1 HYOC2020 wants to reach as many people and organisations as possible. While the lead 
role sits with the Borough and District Councils it is anticipated that participants will include 
the various Town and Parish Councils, Rotary Clubs, leisure and entertainment providers, 
arts and crafts groups, music and dance leaders, and many others. It could be someone 
who runs a small group with an arts, culture or heritage focus who wants to attract new 
people to join them. 

Page 42



 

 

3.4.2 Welwyn Hatfield is fortunate to have the Welwyn Garden City Centenary celebrations 
happening in the same year as HYOC2020. Many of their proposed activities and events 
can be badged and promoted as part of this. The WGC 100 organisers have been in 
regular contact over 2019 and they are very happy to have the support of HYOC2020 in 
promoting their celebrations more widely across Hertfordshire. 

3.4.3 WGC 100 - https://www.wgc100.org - sets out a wide ranging programme of activities and 
events associated with the centenary of Welwyn Garden City. These are branded under 
three broad themes of Community, Nature and Heritage.  

3.4.4 Their signature events include starting the celebrations with a festival of lights in January; a 
carnival with 15 floats in July; over 50 of the town’s sports and leisure clubs planning 
events and competitions to run throughout the year; and the town’s music and performing 
arts groups with a festival. 

3.4.5 Primary schools will be involved in planting bulbs and trees to commemorate the 
centenary. A community led project will also focus on the creation of a Centenary Garden 
in Welwyn Garden City town centre for residents, shoppers and visitors to enjoy for many 
years to come.  

3.4.6 A sculpture of Sir Ebenezer Howard is also being planned in celebration of his vision for 
garden cities. A 20.20km Centenary Walk will circle the villages around the town, and a 
City of Trees project will celebrate the c.19,000 trees which can be found across the town. 
A royal visit is also being planned to happen during the year.  

3.5 Legacy 

3.5.1 HYOC2020 intends to create a lasting culture legacy for Hertfordshire. It hopes to do this 
by increasing the visibility of the cultural offer to all residents and visitors; attracting new 
resources to support cultural development from national funding and sponsorship 
schemes; assessing and evaluating the impact of a more inclusive cultural offer on public 
health and well-being; and encouraging a shared cultural vision and strategy for 
Hertfordshire to establish the county as a great place to participate in culture.  

3.5.2 An existing online resource – Creative Hertfordshire – will help to deliver this legacy. It is a 
free to use website within which people can create a profile to promote their arts, crafts, 
music, dance or other cultural interest to everyone else. Over 800 individual profiles 
already exist and more are being created every week as the HYOC2020 publicity spreads 
around the county. Creative Hertfordshire is found here - 
https://www.creativehertfordshire.com/.  

Implications 

4. Legal Implications 

4.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from the contents of this report. 
 
5. Financial Implications 

 

5.1       This Council has committed to providing the HYOC2020 project with core funding of 
£1,000 in each of two financial years to support the delivery of this project. This is 
consistent with all other Local Authorities in the county who have done the same. 

 
6. Risk Management Implications 

6.1 There are no risk assessment implications directly arising from the contents of this report. 
 
 

Page 43

https://www.creativehertfordshire.com/


 

 

7. Security and Terrorism Implications 

7.1 There are no direct security and terrorism implications directly arising from the contents of 
this report.  

7.2 However it is clear that large public activities and events being delivered as part of this 
project seek appropriate advice and guidance from the local Safety Advisory Teams, and 
they are being encouraged to do so.  

8. Procurement Implications 

8.1 There are no procurement implications directly arising from the contents of this report. 

9. Climate Change Implications 

9.1 There are no direct climate change implications directly arising from the contents of this 
report.  

9.2 However those organisations who are organising large public activities and events in 
support of this project are being asked to do so in an environmentally sustainable way as 
far as possible. 

10. Health and Wellbeing Implications 

10.1 There are no direct health and wellbeing implications directly arising from the contents of 
this report.  

10.2 However the delivery of the HYOC2020 project is expected to have a very positive impact 
on public health and wellbeing through raising participation levels in a wide range of 
enjoyable arts, culture and heritage activities and events across Hertfordshire, and 
promoting a stronger sense of community and belonging among local people.  

11. Communication and Engagement Implications 

11.1 There are no communication and engagement implications directly arising from the 
contents of this report.  

11.2 However, this Council’s Communications Team has, and will be, involved in promoting and 
supporting HYOC2020 across its print and digital media channels to raise awareness and 
encourage participation in local cultural life. 

12. Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 This report is directly linked to the Council’s corporate priority for Our Community. 
Specifically it contributes towards ‘improving public health and wellbeing’ and ‘supporting 
local sport and culture’.   

 
13. Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has not been completed because this report does not 
propose changes to existing service-related policies or the development of new service 
related policies. 

 
Name of Author: Paul Underwood (01707) 357220 
Title: Head of Policy and Culture 
Date: November 2019 
 
 
 

Page 44



 

 

Illustrations of HYOC 2020 Advertising and Branding 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

   

 

www.HYOC2020.org.uk

@HYOC2020

HertsYOC2020

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47

Agenda Item 13a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

Agenda Item 14a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 ACTIONS STATUS REPORT
	7a Hertfordshire Growth Board Memorandum of Understanding (Forward Plan Reference FP953)
	7a1 - Appendix 1 MoUGrowthBoard

	8 PERFORMANCE EXCEPTION REPORT - QUARTER 2 (2019-20)
	9 COUNCIL ACHIEVEMENTS LIST (JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2019)
	9a - Achievements List (Dec 19)

	10 HERTFORDSHIRE YEAR OF CULTURE 2020 - UPDATE
	13a Award of Contract for the Supply and Rollout of Food Caddies (Forward Plan Reference FP954)
	14a Grant Award of Registered Provider of Housing

